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May 23, 2024 
  

Addendum No. 2 
  
Your reference is directed to the Invitation to Bid for: 2024-SWB-22 Maintenance and Repair 
of Algiers Water Tower for the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans, which proposals 
are due on May 29, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. CST. 
 
This addendum provides: 

1. Questions provided by Vendors (Pages 2 – 5) 
2. Revised Attachment C – Bid Form (Page 6)  
3. Original Tank Drawings (Page 7) 
4. 2003 Inspection Report (Pages 8 – 9) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
The changes, additions, and/or deletions included herein are hereby made part of the solicitation documents for 
2024-SWB-22 Contract 1457 Maintenance and Repair of Algiers Water Tower, as fully and completely as if the 
same were set forth therein.  The bidder shall be responsible for having knowledge of all addendum issued for 
this ITB. 
 

This addendum consists of nine (9) pages. 
*** END OF ADDENDUM *** 

 



1. Series 20 is an old coating system and is discontinued. Also, series N140 on the interior is 
no longer NSF approved. We can do a stripe coat or an intermediate but not a final coat. 
We could do L140 instead. This is covered by the paint vendor comments.  

Per Engineering, Paint is series 21 and stripe coat is Tnemec Series 21 Epoxoline 
 

2. Are Builders Risk/OCP insurance required? 

Per Risk Management, No. 
 

3. Is flood insurance required? 

Per Risk Management, No.  
 

4. What is the budget for this project? 

$570,000 
 

5. Per the technical specifications, Contractor shall provide all labor and materials 
necessary to blast-clean, recoat, and disinfect the INTERIOR of the Two Million 
(2,000,000) gallon Water Tank and entails adding OSHA compliant ladders. Is 
that accurate?  

Per Engineering, The scope is to blast clean, recoat and disinfect interior only of the two-
million-gallon elevated water tank. Also, the contractor shall install a new OSHA 
compliant ladder (along with standoffs and a safety climb device) at the existing primary 
shell manhole as well as modify or replace existing ladder at the main hatch with an OSHA 
compliant ladder with anti-skid rungs (along with standoffs and a safety climb device) 
 

6. Does any exterior work (including adding/replacing manways/hatches) per the inspection 
report get done on this contract? 

Per Engineering, This does not include any exterior work 
 

7. Are there rigging plugs installed?  

Per Engineering, There are no known rigging plugs, but there are painter’s clips as shown 
on the attached Original Tank Drawing with this addendum (Page 7). Per drawing 11386 
1 W-13 supplied with specifications states painter’s clips are spaced about 8’ 0’ on centers 
near the apex on the roof, around tank just below the water line.  
 

8. In the insurance section 1 (A)(d) Errors & Omissions/Professional Liability 
Insurance, we cannot get that insurance. An engineer or an architect are the only 
ones that can get that. In this situation, this does not apply. Who will carry that if 
required? 

Per Risk Management, This coverage is not needed for this project.  
 

9. In reference to Technical Specification # 5. Ladders Install OSHA 1910.23(b)(4) 
compliant interior bowl access ladders complete with standoffs every 10' on center at 
primary roof hatch and the primary manhole. See page 21 of PTTG Inspection Report 



attached. Page 21 of the reports on states the following: Primary interior access ladder in 
above photo is not equipped with anti-skid rungs and is only 13" wide.  OSHA 
1910.23(b)(4) states, "Ladder rungs, steps, and cleats have a minimum clear width 
of...  16 inches (41 cm) (measured before installation of ladder safety  
systems) for fixed ladders...  ” We recommend installing an OSHA compliant interior 
access ladder complete with standoffs every 1O' on center, a cable type ladder safety 
device at the primary roof hatch and modifying the existing rungs to be anti-skid. the 
contractor shall install a new OSHA compliant ladder (along with standoffs and a safety 
climb device) at the existing primary shell manhole as well as modify or replace existing 
ladder at the main hatch with an OSHA compliant ladder with anti-skid rungs (along with 
standoffs and a safety climb device) It was stated in the pre-bid that four (4) ladders 
needed to be replaced on the interior, but per the drawings, there are only two (2) ladders 
inside of the tower.  

Per Engineering, Two ladders will be installed. One at the main manhole and the one at the 
main hatch. There is an option to modify the one at the main hatch to be OSHA compliant 
 

10. How many ladders are in the tower to be replaced and are there drawings reflecting that?  

Per Engineering, There are two ladders involved with the scope, the main manway and the 
main hatch.  They are shown in the original tank drawing attached to this addendum. The 
New ladder is from the manhole to the tank floor.  
 

11. In regard to the ladders inside the tank, in the plans on drawing no. 11878-W-13 under 
the coating schedule and legend C-7, it is calling for the ladders to be hot dip galvanized 
as a prime coat. Question:  Could the ladders be stellllllel and primed with the coating 
specified in C-1 in the same section? 

Per Engineering, The ladders do not require galvanizing as a prime coat. The drawings 
attached to spec are for reference only. Current industry practice is for the ladder to match 
the paint and primer spec.  
First Coat: Tnemec Series 91 H2O Hydro‐Zinc, thickness 2.5‐3.5 dry mils. 
Intermediate coat: Series 21 Epoxoline beige 5.0‐7.0 dry mils. 
Finish coat: Series 21 Epoxoline 5.0‐7.0 dry mils. 
 

12. After looking at the inspection report concerning the interior ladder, it sounds like just 
ONE ladder is to be replaced however on the bid form it says 4 ladders are needed. Please 
clarify this.   

Per Engineering, The ladder at the Shell hatch needs to be replaced or modified to OSHA 
criteria. A new ladder to OSHA criteria is required for the shell manhole. 
 

13. The surface prep for the interior states, "The rusted and abraded area of tank interior shall 
be Society for Protective Coating-SSPC-SP10 Near-White Metal Blast Cleaned, and 
brush blast all remaining surfaces to SSPC-SP7" So, is this a spot blast of SP10 and a 
brush blast of the rest of the tank? 
 
Per Engineering, All interior surfaces shall be blast cleaned. Rusted, abraded areas items 
shall be blasted to SSPC-SP10 “Near White Metal Blast Cleaned” remaining surfaces shall 



be blasted per SPC-SP7. This shall not be interpreted as a spot blast of SP10 and brush 
blast of rest of tank.   
 

14. Is there a bid bond required?  

Per Engineering Department, There is no bid bond required  
 

15. Are DBE's required to subcontract or can they perform the entire contract without a 
subcontractor?.  

Per EDBP Department, DBE’s bidding as prime cannot fulfill the DBE requirement by 
listing themselves as the subcontractor to meet the DBE goal. The prime contractor must 
select another DBE from Sewerage and Water Board’s approved vendor listing.  
 

16. Do the existing interior and/or exterior coatings contain lead and if so, how much?   
 
Per Engineering, In 2002 the coal tar epoxy coating was removed from the tank interior, 
and it was SP10 blasted.  This project also required lead paint removal if found inside 
tank. No lead was reported found or removed. The attached inspection report (Pages 8 – 
9) shows only coal tar epoxy was removed.    
 

17. When is the desired mobilization date?  
 
Per Engineering, Desired mobilization is Oct 1, 2024. Project needs to be complete by 
year end. 
 

18. What is the estimated bid price?  
 
Budgeted $570,000. 
 

19. Can we get a list of the plan holders? 
 
Rivera Power Up Construction 
APEC Construction 
The Conerly Corp 
Digiovanni Construction 
 

20. Who will be performing coatings inspections? Any 3rd party inspectors? If so, who will it 
be? If unknown, who is being considered?  
 
Per Engineering, Sewerage and Water Board will assign inspectors within the 
organization. 
 

21. Are any bonds required on this project? 
 
Per Engineering, No. 
 

22. Do liquidated apply and if so, how much are they? 
 
Per Engineering, No. 
 



23. Is there a warranty on the work and if so, how long?  
 

Please submit manufacturer's warranty.  
 

24. I didn’t see EDBP summary sheet in the specs and its not listed in the checklist as 
required. Can you clarify if this summary sheet is needed and if so where we can obtain 
it? 

The Summary Sheet is not provided because there is a 0% goal of DBE on this Project.  
 

25. Reference Bid Form #2. Are safety climbs being installed on the 4 ladder?  
 
Per Engineering, We have two ladders, not 4. The ladders require a safety climb. All to 
be installed as required by OSHA. 

 



Vendor:

Item No. Quantity Description Price Per Unit Total Price

Item No. 
1 1

Blast-Clean, Recoat and Disinfect Interior of Algiers 
Water Tower - 2940 Casimire Street, Algiers, LA 
70131

 $  $ 

Item No. 
2 2 Install OSHA compliant Ladders  $  $ 

 $ TOTAL FOR  ITEM NOS. 1 THROUGH 2

Maintenance and Repair AWP Tower
(ITEM NOS. 1 THROUGH 2)

ATTACHMENT C
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